Che... Coughburian.



CONTENTS.

School Notes.

The Distribution of Prizes.

Prize List, 1917.

Old Boys.

Empire Day.

Founder's Day.

End of Term Service.

Oxford Local Examinations.

Cadet Corps.

Roll of Service and Honour.

Che Loughburian.

VOL. XXIII.

No. 63.

SCHOOL NOTES.

The following boys were first and second in their respective forms at the end of last term:

Form I.: 1, H. M. Ware; 2, W. G. K. Parker.

Form II.: 1, R. J. Gibson; 2, A. J. K. Parker.

Form III.: 1, G. H. Browne; 2, W. C. Brydson.

Form IV.: 1, L. A. Reynolds; 2, R. W. Payne.

Form V.: 1, A. C. Barson; 2, W. Clarke.

Low. VI.: 1, T. Pritchard; 2, T. King.

The following boys left in April, 1917:—

Form VI.: Lowther, A. H.; Captain 1st XI. Football; Gymn. Eight (2nd); Sergt.-Major Cadet Corps; Tennis and Cricket.

Form V.: Lowe, R. G.; Padmore, G. R.

Form IV.: Grimley, A. E.

Form III.: Chambers, H.C.; Mettham, S.; Football 1st XI.

The following boys joined the School in May, 1917:-

Form IV.: Simpson, A. L.; *Wooler, D. E. N. P.; *Wooler, L. C. P.

Form III.: Lowe, S. E. H.

Form II.: Clarke, B. G.; Smith, J. S.; Towers, H. W.

Form I.: †Ainsworth, R. W.; Towers, C. V.

*Boarder, School House. †Boarder, Foxholme.

We have never, so far as remembrance runs, had so large an entry of new boys for the Summer Term as this year.

We much regret to record the death in action, in April, 1917, of Sec.-Lieut. A. J. Veitch, R.F.A., to whom Miss Harvey, for some terms mathematical mistress here, was married in April, 1916, and beg to express our sympathy for the widow, who is left with a little daughter a few months old.

The scarcity of labour has prevented us having the cricket field and the grass in the court kept cut this summer. The grass on pitches and tennis-courts has been kept fairly short by a small mowing machine, drawn and guided by the boys themselves. An attempt was made to employ the big horse machine, but a team of boys was not satisfactory as they did not pull the machine with sufficient speed and regularity, and the trial of harnessing a

THE LOUGHBURIAN.

3

borrowed but untamed steed to the machine by amateur 'drivers' was twice attended with somewhat disastrous results.

Sergt.-Major Harris, known to many generations of boys here as the kindly conductor of "punishment drill," was, to our regret, obliged to resign in the course of last term, and no successor has yet been appointed. Meanwhile the so-called "drills" now take the form of detention of half an hour, in which "copies" are written under the eye of a master. The change does not seem very popular!

We congratulate Mr. W. G. Spooner on his new appointment as Head of the Art School at Burton-on-Trent He has been with us for the last eight years, and we are exceedingly sorry to bid him good-bye. We shall be fortunate if his successor shows equal capacity for teaching, devotion to duty, and willingness to fall in with the arrangements of the School time-table.

The duty of "scavenging" now devolves upon the boy who comes out bottom of his form each fortnight. He is "on duty" during the "break" on Wednesday and Saturday, but he can substitute for his own name on the list that of any boy who is identified as the owner of paper found lying about.

SCHOOL LIBRARY.

G. H. K. Walker has presented to the Library, on leaving, "The Gorilla Hunters," by R. M. Ballantyne; M. C. Waddell, "Schooldays at Highfield House," by A. N. Malan; W. Jervis, "With Kitchener in the Soudan," by G. A. Henty.

LIST OF CASUALTIES SINCE OUR LAST ISSUE.

KILLED.

Gunner A. S. Heward, R.F.A., April 23rd, 1917.

Sec.-Lieut. Alexander William Leslie, Leicestershire, Regiment, April 23rd, 1917, aged 24.

Sec.-Lieut. J. H. Wilson, Sherwood Foresters, April 7th, aged 33. Pte. A. R. Tinsley, Canadian Infantry, April 10th, 1917, aged 21. Pte. H. Smalley, Leicestershire Regiment, missing July 1st, 1916

now officially presumed killed, aged 22.

Capt. Arthur Lea Harris, Loyal North Lancashire Fusiliers, July 31st, 1917.

WOUNDED AND PRISONER.

Sec.-Lieut. F. B. Pitts, Leicestershire Regiment, May 3rd, 1917.

WOUNDED.

Capt. W. E. Porter, Leicestershire Regiment, June, 1917. Sec.-Lieut. J. Cope, Leicestershire Regiment.

Sec.-Lieut. J. H. Jones, Leicestershire Regiment.

Major C. G. Daly, H.L.I.

Pte. J. Cumberland, Leicestershire Regiment, June, 1917.

Sec.-Lieut. R. Hay, Loyal North Lancashire Regt., June, 1917.

Pte. T. Onions, A.S.C. (Mechanical Transport), July, 1917.

Lieut. W. F. Jelley, Yorkshire Regiment, Aug., 1917 (2nd time). Sec.-Lieut. T. F. McCarthy, Loyal North Lancashire Fusiliers,

August, 1917.

Sec.-Lieut. N. F. Spence, Devonshire Regiment, August, 1917. Sec.-Lieut. H. A. Lowe, Leicestershire Regiment, August, 1917.

Sec.-Lieut. E. Birkett, A. & S. Highlanders, August, 1917.

ADDITIONS.

Capt A. L. Harris, Loyal N. Lancashire Fusiliers.

Pte. F. N. H. Lowe, R.E.

Wireless Operator H. Clarke, R.N.V.R.

Boy Mechanic P. H. Cook, R.N.A.S.

Sec.-Lieut. N. B. Fox, 8th Reserve Lancers, Cavalry Regiment.

Pte. A. R. Tinsley, Canadian Infantry.

Pte. J. Cumberland, Leicestershire Regiment.

Sec.-Lieut. N. F. Spence, Devonshire Regiment,

Corrections and Promotions.

Sec.-Lieut. E. H. Marsh, Sherwood Foresters, acting Captain.

Sec.-Lieut. B. C. W. Main, Leicestershire Regiment.

Sec.-Lieut. S. Corah, Leicestershire Regiment, acting Captain while in charge of a Company, June 17, 1917

Lieut. A. M. Barrowcliff, M.C., Leicestershire Regt., promoted Captain, June 1, 1917.

THE DISTRIBUTION OF PRIZES.

[From the "Loughborough Monitor."]

The distribution of prizes at Loughborough Grammar School took place on Wednesday morning. Mr. Henry Deane, Chairman of the Governors, presided, and was supported by the Rev. Canon T. Pitts, Ald. W. Moss, Ald. A. Bumpus, Coun. H. Clemerson, Coun. B. B. Barrow, and the Headmaster, Mr. B. D. Turner.

The Headmaster read the reports of the examiners. The Rev. G. C. Walker, M.A., dealing with English and French, said the answers by Form VI. on the three Shakespeare plays were distinctly good; satisfactory knowledge of the text was shown and questions of criticism dealt with very clearly. "Henry V." by Form V. was quite satisfactory, and the answers on English history by Form IV. and on geography by Form III. showed these papers had been well prepared. French was generally good. He

was much pleased with the viva voce examination of Forms IV.. III., II., and I., and was sure they included some good material: the boys were being carefully taught and responding to the teaching. In mathematics the report stated that the average work of the Sixth Form in trigonometry was very fair, and that of the Fifth in geometry generally good, while in IV. and III. in algebra the work on the whole was of moderate quality. The examiner in chemistry and physics reported that the scientific work of the school continued to be of a very satisfactory character. The papers were well informed and clearly argued, showing that much care and attention was given to the training of the boys, both in the theoretical principles of scientific knowledge and in its practical application. Altogether the results gave reason for congratulation both to the staff and the school on the excellent examination which had followed a conscientious and thorough year's work.

The Headmaster said they were doing their best to carry on under the disadvantages which most occupations suffered in these days. They had had to change their staff frequently, and they were grateful for the way those who had filled the gaps had been successful in carrying on the work. The teaching profession had never tried to shelter themselves behind the screen of the blessed word "indispensability." (Applause.) From the beginning of the war the governors and he were determined not to raise a finger to stop anyone from serving his country, and that policy had been carried out throughout. He thought they might be congratulated that in spite of all the difficulties they had done their work as the examiners' reports showed it had been done. Difficulty was not only created by the loss of staff, but there was a perceptible unrest among the boys themselves, and he believed they needed more discipline and more keeping to attention at their work than usual. He had impressed upon the boys that, as in a besieged city, every person who was not doing work in the business of the city was a useless mouth consuming food to no purpose, and in most cases was got rid of by the authorities, so every individual who now was not doing a proper day's work was not worth the food he was consuming. (Applause.) He was glad to know that the claims of the teachers were at last, if tardily, to be dealt with by the Minister of Education, for it had been a scandal, after people had spent much money and time in qualifying, they should be paid only at the rate of a labourer's wage. But he was glad there were hopes of a change, and that teachers might look for something nearer a living wage. (Hear, hear.) Their roll of service and honour now contained the names of 267 former boys who were serving their country. Of these 106 were commissioned officers, 28 had died, 27 were wounded, one had gained the D.S.O., and two had won Military Medals—not a bad record for a school of their size. (Applause.)

The school and visitors stood while Mr. Turner read the list of old boys who had lost their lives on service since last Prize Day.

Mr. Deane then distributed the prizes in accordance with the list below.

Alderman Bumpus proposed a vote of thanks to the Chairman, and also expressed appreciation of the work of the headmaster and staff, for it was a matter of satisfaction that under many difficulties the work had been so well maintained. Heavy obligations and great opportunities lay before the boys, of which their country would demand the greatest fulfilment. They would benefit themselves and the State by meeting to the uttermost the opportunities and responsibilities which would confront them when their school career was over, but he was confident, from the good work they were doing at school, that they would be able and willing to do their utmost in the future.

Canon Pitts, seconding, said history was being written very rapidly in these days, and they with other boys would have a great share in making the England that was to be what she ought to be. To do that they must do their duty, and they must begin by doing their duty at school, and so lay the foundation for doing it in the larger life to which they would be called.

Mr. Deane acknowledged the thanks, and the proceedings closed with the National Anthem.

PRIZE LIST, 1917.

(Determined by the results of Examinations throughout the year).

Form, English, Language, Mathematical, Science, Drawing, and Manual Work Prizes.

N.B.—A separate Form Prize is not given to a boy if he has won another Prize in his Form.

The Prizes for Languages are given by W. B. Paget, Esq., J.P.; those for Science by W. C. Burder, Esq., J.P.; those for Manual Work are the "Howard Gibbs Memorial Prizes."

Form I. H. M. Ware-Form.

W. G. K. Parker-Writing.

W. Vance-Form (Winter and Spring), Languages. Form II.

R. J. Gibson—Form (Summer), Writing. G. T. B. Watson—Mathematics.

T. L. Bissill-English.

G. D. Bailey-Drawing (II. and I.)

R. W. Highton-Manual Work.

Form III. V. H. Baguley—Form (Winter), English.

G. H. Browne-Form (Summer), Languages, Science.

A. Thorley—Form (Spring), Mathematics.

J. H. Hoves—Manual Work.

Form IV. R. W. Payne—Form, English, Languages, Science. L. A. Reynolds—Form (Summer), Mathematics. T. Attenborough—Manual Work, Drawing (IV. and III.)

Form V. A. C. Barson—Form, English, Mathematics, Science. G. H. Beeby—Languages

Lower VI. T. Pritchard—Form (Spring and Summer), English.
T. King—Form (Winter), Languages, Mathematics.
I. C. Brydson—Science.

Upper VI. S. F. Cotton—Drawing (VI. and V.)

School Reading Prizes.

(Presented by E. H. Warner, Esq., J.P.)
Forms VI. & V.
,, IV. & III.
,, II. & I.
R. W. Payne.
R. J. Gibson.

Scripture Prizes.

(Given by the Headmaster for the best knowledge of the passages taken in Morning Prayers throughout the year).

Upper VI. S. F. Cotton.
Lower VI. T. Pritchard.
Form V. A. C. Barson.
,, IV. J. W. Johnson.
,, III. L. T. Clemerson.
,, II. J. Vance.

Dexter Memorial Essay Prize.

C. R. Topping.

Wallace Prizes.

S. F. Cotton. T. Harrison. F. E. Ryle.

English Prizes.

(Given by W. M. Curzon-Herrick, Esq., for Holiday Reading).

Form VI. S. F. Cotton. ,, V. R. H. Lowe. ,, IV. L. A. Reynolds.

Extra Prizes.

Lower VI. T. S. Fielding.
Form V. W. Clarke.
,, IV. G. T. E. Chamberlain.
C. Ll. Turner.

Gymnasium Medal.

C. R. Tansley.

Cadet Corps.

(Prizes presented by Mr. W. D. Spanton, F.R.C.S.)
SHOOTING: 1, *T. Pritchard; 2, G. H. K. Walker; 3, H. G. Wilson.
DRILLING A COMPANY: 1, T. Harrison; 2, T. Pritchard.
ABILITY TO INSTRUCT: 1, T. H. Webster; 2, T. Pritchard.
**Resigns this prize, having won two others.

Partial Exemptions from Fees for School Year, 1917-18.

These have been awarded as follows on the results of the examinations in July, 1917, allowance being made for age. No boys holding any kind of scholarship are eligible for these partial exemptions.

Form I. W. G. K. Parker, £3.

Form III. A. J. K. Parker, £3.

Form III. G. W. Browne, £3.

M. H. Moss, £3.

R. Mellor, £3.

Form IV. R. Vance, £3.

Form IV. R. Vance, £3. W. J. Dyer, £3. G. Barrow, £3. J. W. Johnson, £3. M. O. Hooley, £3.

Form V. W. G. Smith, £3. J. B. S. Marsh, £3.

Distinctions Gained by Former Pupils.

J. C. ANDERSON—Matriculation Examination at Glasgow University.

J. L. CARTWRIGHT—2nd Class Pt. II. Historical Tripos at Cambridge.

H. GREEN-Inter Sci., London University (1914).

J. A. HANFORD-Diploma of I. A. Chartered Secretaries.

N. E. HOOLEY-Preliminary Examination of the Law Society.

C. G. TUCKER—(Temp. Captain, R.F.C.), mentioned in Despatches (May, 1917).

J. W. TURNER—Captain, Sherwood Foresters, awarded the Military Cross, 1917.

OLD BOYS.

We congratulate very heartily Capt. J. W. Turner, Notts and Derby Regiment, on gaining the Military Cross. He was a boarder in the School House from January, 1905, to July, 1908.

Lieutenant J. R. Bingham Turner, the Headmaster's son, who has been for nearly two years with his battery on the western front, was gazetted on May 12th to a permanent regular commission in the Royal Artillery, with seniority as from 7th May, 1916. Only a very limited number of these commissions are granted each month. We congratulate him on obtaining one in the Royal Regiment of Artillery, in which at one time four of his great-uncles held commissions as generals. He has since been appointed Adjutant of his brigade of Field Artillery, the 162nd.

Another Loughburian to receive the Military Medal is Pte. I. Ratcliffe, of the Duke of Cornwall's Light Infantry. In a letter to his father, Mr. Ratcliffe, grocer, he says, "No doubt you will all be pleased to hear I have been awarded the Military Medal for services rendered on 16th—18th August, when we were engaged and took all before us. When on church parade this morning, the C.O. read out a list of six men who had been awarded decorations, including my own."

R. P. Jones, who was serving in the fighting against the Germans in South East Africa, has been invalided with recurrent fever, due to the bad climatic conditions in that zone of operations,

and has been transferred to Egypt.

I. A. Hanford has won the Diploma of the Chartered Institute of Secretries.

The funeral took place on June 20th, at the Loughborough Cemetery, of Mr. George Phillips Jones, M.I.M.E., who died on Sunday, June 17th, at his residence, 65 Forest-road, Loughboro.' Deceased, who was 52 years old, had been in failing health for some months past through a complication of heart trouble. He had, however, been out early in the last week, but was taken seriously ill on the Wednesday, and never rallied. Mr. Jones, who was the eldest son of Mr. John Jones, of Britannia House, Loughborough, was one of the directors of the iron foundry business of Messrs. John Jones and Sons, Ltd. The deceased gentleman was connected with the Wesleyan cause and attended the Leicester-road chapel, of which he was a trustee, a position he held also for the Woodhouse Eaves and Quorn trusts. The first part of the funeral service was taken at the Wesleyan Chapel, Leicester-road. The hymns sung were "Peace, perfect peace," "Now the labourer's task is o'er," and "For all the saints who from their labours rest." The organist, Mr. E. W. Wilders, played as a voluntary "O rest in the Lord." The Revs. F. W. Gostick and H. Hartley officiated. The chief mourners were Mrs. G P. Jones (widow), Miss Edith Jones (daughter), Mr. John Jones (father), Mr. and Mrs. J. J. Jones, Miss Ruth Jones, the Rev. T. H. Barrett, Lieut.-Col. and Mrs. Piercey, Mr. and Mrs. W. T. Tucker, Mrs. Grey, and Miss Chambers. A number of sympathisers were present. Amongst the many flowers sent were wreaths from the employees of John Jones and Sons, Ltd., the officers and members of the Leicester-road Wesleyan Church, the head and staff of the High School, and the members of Mrs. Jones' class. The bearers were employees of the firm.

Our hearty congratulations to Lieut. (Temp. Captain) C. G. Tucker, R.F.C. (Spec. Reserve), for his mention in Sir Douglas Haig's May Despatches, in recognition of services in connection with the engineering department of the Royal Flying Corps in France.

We regret to announce that Pte. H. Smalley, Leicestershire Regiment, reported missing on July 1st, 1916, is now officially presumed to have been killed in action on that date. Harry Smalley, who was the grandson of Mr. W. H. Wootton, one of the Governors of the School, was here for a year and a half in 1909 and 1910, when he left to become apprenticed to the business of Messrs. Bailey and Simpkin, outfitters. He joined the forces early in the war, and was killed in action on the first day of the offensive on the Somme, in 1916. Though at the School for a relatively short period, his cheerful manner and attractive personality won for him many friends. One did not look on him with his somewhat delicate frame as likely to take to soldiering, but his spirit would not let him hang back when the call came, and he voluntarily submitted himself to hardship and peril for the rightful cause of his country.

Captain Arthur Lea Harris, who was killed in action on July 31, was the only son of the Rev. S. F. and Mrs. Harris, Cotleigh Rectory, Devonshire. He was educated at Loughborough Grammar School, and Marlborough. On leaving school he was articled to Messrs. Houghton, Myers, and Reveley, solicitors, Preston, and in 1911 became a partner in the firm. During his residence in Preston he did good work for the Boy Scout movement, and was for some time organising secretary for the Preston District Association. He joined the Loyal North Lancashire Regiment on August 6th, 1914, going to France with his battalion as transport officer on May 1st, 1915. At the end of the following September he was invalided home, and returned to France last January. He was gazetted captain in the spring of 1916.

Sec.-Lieut. Norman F. Spence, of the Devonshire Regt., has been wounded with shrapnel. Information has been received in Loughborough that he was hit in the fleshy part of the leg in two places. The wounds are said to be clean, and there is every prospect of a good recovery. He is in hospital at Wandsworth. Sec.-Lieut. Spence is a son-in-law of Ald. W H. Wootton, J.P. He was an articled pupil with Mr. A. H. Walker, the borough surveyor, at Loughborough, and was then appointed surveyor and inspector of nuisances at the Leake Rural District Council, afterwards obtaining a similar appointment to the Hartshorne and Seals Rural District Council, and from there he went to Marlborough as the borough surveyor, following in that position Mr.

Pearson, who had been at Leake.

Sec.-Lieut. W. F Jelley, of the Yorkshires, has been severely wounded in action and is still in hospital abroad. His father has, since the receipt of the first telegram, been informed that his son has injuries to the head and a smashed thigh-bone of the right leg. Jelley joined the Leicestershire Regiment as a private, and had seen considerable active service and reached the

THE LOUGHBURIAN.

rank of sergeant before coming home to train for his commission. He has previously been wounded, and in connection with that affair it was reported his life was saved by a Loughborough officer, Lieut.-Colonel (then Captain) Beardsley, who cut down a German in the act of bayoneting him.

We have been fortunate enough in having visits from a large number of Old Boys, home for a time on leave, during the past term. Amongst those who have thus favoured us are:—C. E. Lancaster, W. A. Deakin, C. V. Lane, J. H. Grudgings, S. Henson, T. Hare, B. C. W. Main, J. E. Onions, and H. E. Chapman. Mr. Imrie, now discharged from hospital, spent a week of his leave in the town, June 23rd to 29th, before rejoining his regiment for "light work." Though not looking as well as we have been accustomed to see him, he was as cheerful and optimistic as ever, and full of praise of the men amongst whom he has been living since he joined. After doing his duty in the ranks and at the front he thinks of applying for a commission, and no one could be a more fit and proper person.

Congratulations to J. L. Cartwright on gaining a First Class in Pt. I. of the History Tripos at Cambridge.

The Rev. J. A. S. Castlehow, who, after a stay of four years here, left in 1909, having won an exhibition at Selwyn College, Cambridge, and who subsequently won a Philpott studentship, writes from France where he is working with the Y.M.C.A., having secured permission from his Bishop to do his bit in this way. One special duty which is laid upon him is the charge of a big concert hut holding 500 men, and the responsibility for the entertainments in it. He tells how lately a concert party failed to fulfil its engagement, but that the situation was saved with the aid of "a north country Lance Corporal with an expressionless face, and a talent for playing the bones and accompanying anything on the piano."

Mr. William Slater, an Old Loughburian who entered civil life in North America some years ago, has died at Youngstown, Ohio, from spotted fever, whilst fulfilling duties as shell inspector. At the outbreak of war he was on the surveying and engineering staff of the Canadian Northern Railway, and volunteered for war work. Prior to his death he wrote cheery letters home, in which he spoke warmly of the steps the U.S.A. were taking in prosecuting the war.

We are very glad to learn that on July 25th Canon Pitts heard from his son, Sec.-Lieut. F. B. Pitts, Leicestershire Regt., who had been missing since May 3rd, that he was wounded and a prisoner in German hands. He had apparently been wounded by our barrage fire.

H. L. Dawson has passed the Matriculation Examination of London University. He sat for it just before being called up.

Congratultions to J. N. Godkin on his marriage to Miss Mounteney on July 25th.

EMPIRE DAY.

This was kept on May 24th. The school met in the Big School at 12, the cadets marching in in uniform. A short service was held with appropriate prayers, lesson, and hymns, and with an address by the Headmaster, who emphasised the fact that men had come from our Colonies, our Dominions, from every part of our far-flung-empire, not so much to fight for the old country, the mother country, as for the Empire and the ideals which it embodied. Other empires were essentially different in character from the British empire, whether we looked at the ancient Assyrian empire, the Roman empire, or the modern German empire. In all these the characteristic feature was the iron and often barbarously cruel discipline of the central power, and the exploitation of the provinces, subject in the full sense of the term, for the good of the rulers; and liberty was conspicuous for its absence. The British empire, as seen at work at the present day, showed a picture of the purely voluntary co-operation of its various parts, appreciative of the absolute liberty they enjoyed, and resolute to champion the cause of liberty against the cause of oppression, and so fighting with the Allies against the menace offered to liberty by the counter ideals of the German empire with its plan of world domination, or at least of supremacy over a chain of subordinate states, bound fast to its own interests and spreading eastwards from the North Sea to India itself. But this fight was for liberty not license; liberty was freedom to live one's own life within certain limits so drawn as to secure the liberties of others too. All societies lived under such limitations mutually agreed upon between the members for the safeguarding of themselves from wrong and tyranny, and any member disregarding such conventions was nothing less than an enemy to the common weal. All school rules were intended to accustom boys to the existence of such limitations to their individual liberties and to the recognition of them as necessary conditions for the liberties of others. And what was true of school was true too of the larger comity of nations. The only conditions under which nations could live at peace side by side was if they mutually agreed upon limitations to their own powers and upon the respect due to the rights of others. The principles on which these self imposed limitations should be drawn were fairly clear, and the British empire stood for their observance against their practical denial in the German empire.

FOUNDER'S DAY.

The actual day, June 12th, was marked by a service held at noon in the Big School, but the usual holiday was reserved till June 23rd. The Headmaster, in the course of his address, remarked that our Founder had no doubt had two objects in viewto fit the boys of the neighbourhood for such callings as needed some elementary knowledge of reading and writing or even to train them so as to become eventually priests; and also to bring them in their early years under the direct influence of the Church. Now the school was free from any direct connection with the church and the complicated structure of modern society made religious education in schools difficult and tended to nullify one of the Founder's aims. A recent description of the aim of all education made it consist in the imparting of knowledge of the True, the Beautiful, and the Good (le Vrai, le Beau, le Bien), a somewhat ideal description of the work-a-day aims of any school, and rather aesthetic and ethical than religious. Reflection, however, modified such first impression. Truth, at least Truth so far as it was at the time apprehended, was the very foundation on which all knowledge was based; if the principles of any subject were false or unsound, if arithmetic for example were based on a belief that 2 and 2 made 5, the structure raised on such foundations could never stand. Thoroughness, accuracy, reasoning, as opposed to guesswork, were all commonly impressed on the pupil in every subject and at every stage, and were all aspects of Truth. Shams could never live for long; that History taught us, in particular through the mouth of one of her prophets, Thomas Carlyle.

Beauty is a term not yet capable of scientific definition, but taking in the first instance the popular acceptation of the term, physical beauty of form of colour was one of the obvious aims in the art teaching, and beauty of sound in the music teaching of a school. Literature teaching too should strive to cultivate a taste which might discriminate between beautiful literature and the worthless literature with which boys were so apt to vulgarise their minds. The best models were studied so as to provide each one with a test by which to estimate the literary values. Even in dull grammar rules in mathematics and chemical formulæ an intellectual beauty could be seen for those whose eyes were trained to recognise it. It was the function of rules and formulæ to reduce a variety which was apparently devoid of order or principle to unity and one definition that had been suggested for Beauty was "unity discerned in variety."

Common language spoke also of beautiful thoughts and deeds, and both history and fiction were utilised to teach an appreciation of them. There was a moral, as well as a physical

and an intellectual beauty; and in the general sense of men Beauty was not to be sought for Beauty's sake alone but only when morally inspired. Further, moral beauty for most people was insensibly merged in the good, and Truth, Beauty, and Goodness are the generally accepted attributes of a personal God, "abundant in goodness and truth." "Worship the Lord in the beauty of holiness," says the Psalmist; and again we are urged "to behold the fair beauty of the Lord and to visit His temple." "How great," exclaims the prophet, "is His goodness and how great is His beauty.

Yet what was common to all these various beautiful things which made us call them beautful, remained an unsolved problem. Plato had explained our recognition of beauty in so many shapes and guises by the theory that in some previous existence our souls had been cognisant of Absolute Beauty, Beauty by and in itself, apart from the object manifesting it, and that our dim recollection of that caused us to recognise it in its earthly copies. Could we translate that into religious language and say that it is the divine in our nature, the divinae particula aurae of the pagan poet, Horace, which caused that "we needs must know the Good when we do see it."

"Finally, my brethren, whatsoever things are true, whatsoever things are honest, whatsoever things are pure, whatsoever things are lovely, whatsoever things are of good report; if there be any virtue, and if there be any praise, think on these things."

END OF TERM SERVICE.

This was held as usual in the Big School, at 11-15 on the day before Prize Day. The Headmaster chose as a text on which to base his address 2 Thess. 3, 10, "If any would not work, neither should he eat." He said that we were all busy condemning "slackers," men who tried to escape service for their country, but, like David when Nathan told him the parable of the rich man and the poor man's lamb, we were very apt not to see that what we blamed in others was a fault of our own. Boys could not urge that they could not be "slackers" like those they quite rightly and naturally scorned, because they were not yet old enough to serve. On the contrary their age was just the one when they could more easily prepare themselves for service than at a less plastic and impressionable age. The call to work might be considered from three points of view. As individuals regarding their own interests alone, they would find that work would make them happier, healthier, and better; it was still as true as ever that "Satan finds some mischief still for idle hands to do." As members of a State, they must remember St. Paul's words

(Romans XIV. 7) "For none of us liveth to himself, and no man dieth to himself." Nobody who was not doing his proper task in the world was doing his duty to the community; he wasted the very food he ate if he produced nothing, failed to fit himself for producing anything. In a besieged city—and statesmen told us that we in England were in a state of siege—the authorities got rid if they could of non-combatants on whom food was wasted. so far as the defence of the city was concerned. Those who now did not do their work in the country were like those useless members of a besieged town who were only fit to be got rid of. Lastly God seemed to have voluntarily limited his powers, to have renounced the power to do things if he got no co-operation from man: we must be "labourers together with God" (I. Cor. 3, 9). For each of us God had some task in store, only to be done if he could use us as instruments; we had all the promise and the material for being machines of surpassing quality and design; it rested with us to perfect ourselves so that we could do what God needed when the call came. It is told of Lord Roberts that when, after a long period of comparative inaction and retirement, he was called by the nation to retrieve our fortunes in the South African War, he was able to answer the call because, as he said, he had "kept himself fit" so as to respond to any such demand on his powers. May we all imitate him in an even higher sense, and make ourselves fit to answer God's call to work.

OXFORD LOCAL EXAMINATIONS, 1917.

SENIORS.

Honours:—Class I., Div. 2: J. C. Brydson*, S. F. Cotton, T. S. Fielding*, T Pritchard*.

Class II., Div. 2: T. King*.

Passed:—S. H. Hawthorne, W. Jervis, C. H. Smith.

* Distinguished in Chemistry.

JUNIORS.

Honours:—Class I., Div. 1: A. C. Barson (distinguished in Mathematics).

Class III.: G. H. Beeby, W. Clarke.

Passed:—A. H. Clemerson, W. G. Smith, C. R. Topping, O. W. Unwin, W. H. Bond.

One Senior and one Junior candidate failed.

CADET CORPS, SUMMER TERM, 1917.

This term the Cadet Corps has been split up into six sections. The N.C.O.'s in charge were responsible for the

discipline of their own sections, and the result was very good, as shown by the Inspection which came later.

We had fairly good weather though not many field days, chiefly owing to the train boys who had to leave at 3 o'clock every afternoon. Instead, we had Company Parades at Quorn and Barrow, Major Brockington coming to drill the Company at Barrow on May 23rd, in preparation for the Battalion Inspection by the Duke of Rutland, which took place on Saturday, June 30th.

There were three parades a week: Monday, Wednesday, and Saturday.

Of the Inspection, the following short account may be given:—Twenty-three officers and over 500 cadets paraded altogether, of which B Company comprised four officers and 141 cadets. The Drill before the Duke was very smart; by way of variety Physical Drill and Extended Order by selected platoons were added. The march past by Companies in line was very well done by all Companies, as was the Drill generally. Lieut. Robson took charge of the Physical Drill, and Major Barnes of the Extended Order. The Duke said he was very pleased with what he had seen, and congratulated both officers and cadets of the Battalion.

At this Inspection every cadet carried a rifle of some kind, and A Company provided a band which performed under Bandmaster Moore.

On July 4th an Outpost Scheme at Quorn was carried out by the whole Company. Loughborough and Ouorn marched to Mr. Farnham's grounds and defended. Ratcliffe advanced from the direction of Sileby, and sent out scouts. Before we left the Grammar School at Quorn, Colonel Toller addressed the contingents, saving how well cadets did their duty by training and learning their drill before they went, if needed, into the regular army. He also said how the late Lord Roberts approved of Cadet Corps being formed at all schools. Ratcliffe advanced from two directions, one from the wood near the Leicester-road, and the other from over the top of the hill. Much useful work was done, although some curious challenging was heard. The defence was under the direction of Corpl. Cotton.

On Saturday, July 21st, two teams representing the Blues and Whites shot. The two persons who attained the highest score received 10s. each as one of the Dr. Spanton Prizes. In the shooting the final result was as follows, out of a possible 90:—

Pritchard 76. Walker 75. Wilson 71.

As Pritchard had won two other prizes, he handed his prize on, so the two winners were Walker and Wilson,

On the following Wednesday a competition for two other branches took place. There were two prizes of 10s. each for Drilling a squad, and two prizes of 10s. each for Instructing a squad. The results were:—

Drilling: 1, Sergt. Harrison; 2, Corpl. Prichard. Instructing: 1, Sergt. Webster; 2, Cpl. Pritchard.

In each of the last two competitions, Corpl. Cotton and L.-Corpl. King were equal third.

The following N.C.O.'s left last term:—Sergts. Harrison and Webster, L.-Corpls. Jervis and Hubbard. Sergts. Harrison and Webster in particular will be very much missed. Waddell leaves a vacancy for a bass drummer.

LIST OF PARADES.

WEDNESDAY PARADES.

May 16 Drill in Sections under Section Commanders.

,, 23 Company Drill with whole of B Company at Barrow, under Major Brockington.

, 30 Drill in Sections.

June 6 Company Drill at Barrow; also Practice in Extended Order Drill.

,, 13 Drill in Sections.

, 20 Combined Company Drill at Barrow.

,, 27 Arm Drill and Physical Drill.

July 4 Outposts at Quorn.

,, 11 Foot and Arm Drill. Guard Duties.

,, 18 Foot and Arm Drill and Musketry.

,, 25 Competition for N.C.O.'s Prizes.

Monday Parades.

May 14 Company Drill and Shooting.

, 21 Company Drill and Shooting.

June 4 Company Drill and Shooting.

, 11 Physical Drill.

,, 18 Physical Drill. Firing at Range.

, 25 Physical Drill. Firing at Range.

July 2 No Parade.

,, 9 Physical Drill. Firing at Range.

,, 16 No Parade.

,, 23 Physical Drill.

THURSDAY PARADES.

May 17 Physical Drill. Short Lecture. , 24 (Empire Day). Saluted the Flag. May 31 Physical Drill.

June 7 Parade Cancelled.

,, 14 Company Drill.

,, 21 Foot and Arm Drill. .. 28 Foot and Arm Drill.

July 5 Physical Drill.

, 12 No Parade.

,, 19 Company Drill.

,, 26 Physical Drill.

An Instruction Camp was held at Syston from July 26th to August 3rd, and a party from this contingent attended it.

ROLL OF SERVICE AND HONOUR.

(The date is prefixed to the name where the O.L. is known to have joined before the summer of 1916).

1914 Allsopp, J., Private, Grenadier Guards (died of wounds, October, 1915)

1916 Allsebrook, M. B., Second Lieut., Ghoorka Rifles

1915 Arnold, H., Private, A.S.C.

1915 Bailey, F. F., Corporal, Coldstream Guards

1915 Bailey, J. F., Second Lieut., R.G.A. Bailey, R., Private, H.A.C.

1916 Bailey, W. E., Private, Leicestershire Regiment. 1914 Baldwin, G. E., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1915 Balfour, A. Hutton, Private, Canadian Contingent

Ball, A. W., Private Royal Fusiliers
 Ball, D., Private Royal Fusiliers
 Ball, G. E., Lance-Corporal, R.F.A.

1914 Ball, G. E., Private, Dublin Fusiliers (died of wounds, September 13th, 1915)

1916 Barker, A. E., 1st Class Mechanic, R.N. Division

1916 Barker, Eric, Private, Hampshire Regiment
 1914 Barker, F., Corporal, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Barratt, G., Trooper, South Notts. Hussars

1915 Barrow, H. C., Second Lieut., York & Lancaster Regiment 1914 Barrowcliff, A. M., Capt., M.C., Leicestershire Regiment

(wounded, 1916)

1915 Beardsley, H., Colonel, Leicestershire Regiment 1914 Billson, J. E., Sergeant, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Birkett, E., Sec. Lieut., Argyle & Sutherland Highlanders (wounded, August, 1917)

1914 Blood, G. P., Private, Canadian Infantry

1916 Bourne, W. E., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1915 Brameld, H. G., Second Lieut., Royal Fusiliers (wounded, 1916)

1914 Brickwood, W. H., Sergeant, Leicestershire Yeomanry

1915 Bromhead, C., Private, R.F.C. Brown, E. M., Private, Coldstream Guards

1914 Bumpus, A. E., Second Lieut., Engineers Corps, R.N. Div.

1914 Bumpus, F. A., Lieut., R.N.A.S.

1914 Burder, H. G., Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Burder, R. G., Second Lieut., A.S.C. Burrows, E. S., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Caldwell, J. R., Second Lieut., K.O.Y.L.I.

1914 Carter, F. B., Major, Australian Expeditionary Force (killed in action)

Cartwright, W. F., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

Case, H. R., Private, Northumberland Fusiliers

1915 Chapman, A. D., Second Lieut., Staffordshire Regiment (killed in action, July 2nd, 1916)

1914 Chapman, A. R., Captain, Heavy M.G.C. (Tanks)

1914 Chapman, H. E., Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Chapman, H. F., Second Lieut., R.E. (retired from ill-health; died March 31st, 1917)

1914 Chapman, John, Captain, Leicestershire Regiment (died of wounds)

1915 Chilton, H., Second Lieut., East Yorks Regiment

1914 Clarke, Hilary, Second Lieut., M.G.C. Clarke, H., Wireless Operator, R.N.V.R.

1914 Clarke, L. E., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Clarke, W. F., Sergeant (Interpreter), Leicestershire Regt.
(missing October 13th, 1915; presumed dead)
Claypole A. H. Technical Officer, attached to Devonshire

Claypole, A. H., Technical Officer, attached to Devonshire Regiment

Clemerson, F. H., Gunner, R.G.A.

1914 Clifford, M., Captain, Sherwood Foresters

1914 Cope, J., Sec. Lieut., Leicestershire Regt. (wounded, 1917) Copley, G., Private, Royal Scots

1916 Corah, J. H., Private, Royal Fusiliers (wounded and missing, November 13th, 1916)

1914 Corah, S. H., Lieut. (acting Captain), Leicestershire Regt. (wounded, 1917)

Corbet, R. A., Second Lieut., A.S.C.

1914 Cotton, W. G., Lieut., M.G.C. (wounded, Sept. 20th, 1916) 1914 Court, A. E., Lance-Corporal, Royal Engineers

1914 Cox, L., Private, Royal Fusiliers

1914 Cresswell, F., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regt. (killed July 1st, 1916)

1916 Cross, A. H., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Cross, W., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1916 Cross W., Sapper, A.H. Cable Section, R.E.

1915 Cumberland, J., Private, Leicestershire Regt. (wounded, June, 1917)

1914 Daly, C. G., Major, H.L.I. (wounded, 1917)

1914 Daly, D. C., Midshipman, H.M.S Excellent 1916 Davenport, P., Second Lieut., A.S.C.

1914 Davis, A. H., Major, D.S.O., Army Service Corps

1914 Davis, T. G. Lieut., Army Veterinary Corps Dawson, A. L., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Deakin, W. A., Sapper (Interpreter), R.E. Deane, A. B., Indian Defence Corps

1915 Deane, H. E., Lieut., R.F.A.

1914 Deane, H. J., Lieut.-Q.-M., Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Deane, R., Major, South African Mounted Rifles

1916 Dobson, F., Sergeant, Leicestershire Regiment

Dowland, L., Second Lieut., R.F.C. (wounded, April, 1917)
 Eagles, J. E., Rev., Chaplain to Forces (previously Private, R.A.M.C.)

1914 Eaton, J. R., Lieut., A.S.C. (killed in action, 1917)

1915 Faulks, E., Lieut., R.A.M.C. (died, 1915)

1915 Findley, M., Lance-Corporal, New Zealand Expeditionary Force (died of wounds, May 29th, 1916) Fletcher, E. Captain, R.F.C. (wounded)

1914 Fletcher, E. H., Captain, A.S.C.

1914 Fletcher, H. W., Private, Royal Fusiliers Fletcher, Frank, Private

1914 Fletcher, Fred, Private, R.N.A.S.

1914 Ford, A. V., Second Lieut., R.E. (Signals)

1915 Fowler, E. G., Captain, A.S.C. Fox, N. B., Second Lieut., 8th Reserve Lancers

1916 Foxall, W. J., Sec. Lieut., A.S.C. (Mechanical Transport)

1914 Foxon, A. L., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment 1915 Fuller, J. S., Second Lieut., R.F.A. (wounded, 1916)

1915 Gadsby, C., Second Lieut., Manchester Regiment

1915 Gibbs, O. S., Private, (invalided out)

1914 Gibbs, P. E. W., Private, Royal Fusiliers (wounded July 20th, 1916)
Gilkes, J. E., Private, A.S.C. (Motor Transport)

Gimson, L. H., Second Lieut., R.E. (Tunnelling Company) 1914 Gimson, W. H., Captain, Durham Fortress

Godfrey, C. W., Second Lieut.

1915 Godkin, J.N., Second Lieut., Leicester Howitzer Brigade (invalided out)

1914 Grayston, S. E., Private, Leicestershire Regiment Green, H., Private, D.L.I.

1914 Grudgings, H., Trooper, Leicestershire Yeomanry (missing May, 1915; presumed killed in action)

1915 Grudgings, J. H., Gunner, R.F.A.

Gunn, S., Private, T.R Battalion Hale, G. E., Air Mechanic, R.F.C

1916 Hall, A. W., Gunner, R.F.A.

1914 Hall, T. W., Second Lieut., Dorset Regiment Hames, E., Private, Coldstream Guards

1914 Hamilton, K., Private, Royal Fusiliers

1914 Handley, J., Major, Royal Canadian Highlanders Handley, W. S., Captain, R.A.M.C. (wounded)

1914 Hanford, A., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1916 Hanford, Rev. D., Chaplain to S. African Force

1914 Hare, T., Second Lieut., Cheshire Regiment

1915 Hardy, E., Private (Unit unknown)

1916 Harris, A. J., Gunner R.G.A.

Harris, A. L., Capt., Loyal North Lancashire Regiment
(killed in action, July 31st, 1917)

1914 Harris, J. H., Second Lieut., Lincolnshire Regiment Harriss, W. F., M.G. Corps

Harper, H.G., Private, T.R. Battalion

1914 Hatton, F. H., Private, Middlesex Regiment

1916 Hay, R., Second Lieut., Loyal North Lancashire Regiment (wounded, June, 1917)

1914 Henson, S., Corporal, Leicestershire Yeomanry, now Sec. Lieut. (not yet posted)

1914 Hepworth, Rev. C. L., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regt. (retired)

1916 Heward, A. S., Gunner, R.F.A. (killed in action, April 23rd, 1917)

1914 Hews, C. H., Private, Leicestershire Regiment Highton, L. F., Gunner, R.G.A

 Holland, J. L., L.-Corpl., Leicestershire Regt. (wounded)
 Holt, W. L., Second Lieut., York & Lancaster Regiment (wounded, July, 1917)

1914 Horsfield, W. G., Second Lieut., West Riding Regiment

1914 Hubbard, D., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1916 Hudson, G. C., Second Lieut., D.L.I. (Staff of 20th Brig.)

1914 James, A. L. B., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Jamie, J. P. W., Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Jamie, R. C. S., Second Lieut., A.S.C.

1914 Jarratt, A. V., attached Headquarters, 2nd Div., (wounded July 15th, 1916)

1914 Jelley, W. F., Second Lieut., Yorkshire Regt. (wounded, 1916, and August, 1917)

1915 Jones, J. H., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment (wounded, 1917)

1914 Jones, L. T., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment

1915 Jones, R. P., Private, Armed Motor Section

1914 Kent, W. F., Sergt. Trumpeter, Leicestershire Yeomanry (killed in action, May, 1915)
 Kirk, F. L., Private, Leicestershire Regiment Kirk, Francis, Driver, R.F.A.

1915 Kirkman, E., Private, Mechanical Transport, A.S.C.

1915 Kirkman, J. P. W., Private, Canadian Contingent

1914 Laban, O. G., Trooper, South Notts. Hussars

1915 Lakin, T., Private, York Rangers, Canadian Contingent

1914 Lamb, G. H., Q.-M.-S., Royal Warwickshire Regiment

1914 Lancaster, C. E., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Lane, C. V., Driver, R.H.A. Lawrence, E. G., Trooper, Australian Light Horse

1916 Leslie, A. W., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment (died of wounds, April 23rd, 1917)

1915 Lowe, C.E., Air Mechanic, R.F.C.

1914 Lowe, E. A., Second Lieut., Royal Fusiliers

1915 Lowe, F. N. H., Private, Royal Engineers

1915 Lowe, H. A., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regt. (wounded, August, 1917)

1914 Lowe, W. A., Corporal, Leicestershire Yeomanry Lowther, A. H., Cyclist, Hampshire Regiment MacCall, J. T., Corporal, Motor Despatch Riders

 MacCarthy, T. F., Second Lieut., L.N. Lancashire Regt. (wounded, August, 1917)
 MacLachlan, C. F., Captain, R.A.M.C.
 MacLachlan, D. H., Private, N.Z.R.B.

1916 Main, B. C. W., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment Main, A. J. E., Private, Mechanical Transport, A.S.C.

1916 Main, F., Private, Mechanical Transport, A.S.C.1915 Maltby, P. B., Wireless Operator, Royal Navy

1914 Marsh, E. H. Captain, Notts. & Derby Regt. (wounded)

1914 Marshall, D. J. A., Gunner, R.F.A.

1916 Matthews, F., Private, Sherwood Foresters

1914 Matts, W. A., Trooper, Leicestershire Yeomanry (wounded) Merrick, F., Private, T.R. Battalion

1914 Moir, L. J., Trooper, Leicestershire Yeomanry (killed in action, May, 1915)

1914 Mooney, W. J., Wireless Telegraphist, H.M.S. Active

1915 Moore, D., Private, Cavalry M.G. Corps

1915 Morgan, I., Private, Northamptonshire Regiment 1916 Morley, L. H., Royal Fusiliers (Bankers' Battalion)

Moriey, L. H., Royal Fusiliers (Bankers' Battalion)
Moss, F. W., Private, Suffolk Regiment, now Sec. Lieut.
(not yet posted)

Moss, G. A., Lance-Corporal, Artists' Rifles

1914 Moss, H., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment (killed in action, 1915)

Moss, J., Army Pay Corps

THE LOUGHBURIAN.

23

1914 Moss, V., Second Lieut., R.F.A.

1915 Moss, W. H., Lieut., Transp. Officer, Leicestershire Regt.

1914 Neale, H., Private

1914 Needham, H. H., L.-Corpl., Canadian Cavalry Regiment

1914 Needham, J. C., Sergeant, Leicestershire Yeomanry (killed in action, May, 1915)

1914 Neesham, W. O., Second Lieut., S. Lancashire Regiment

1914 Nisbet, W. F., Captain, A.S.C. (Mechanical Transport) 1914 Oldershaw, J. J. F., Second Lieut., K.O.Y.L.I. (killed in

action, July 1st, 1916)

1914 Oliver, Colonel, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Onions, J. E., Sergeant-Major and Technical Warrant Officer, R.F.C.

1915 Onions, T., Private, A.S.C. (Mechanical Trans.) (wounded, July, 1917)

1915 Onions, Z., Corpl., A.S.C. (Mechanical Transport)

1915 Oswin, E., Private, York and Lancaster Regiment

1914 Paget, J. T. G., Second Lieut., A.S.C.

1914 Palmer, A. F., Pte., A.S.C. (died on service, Sept. 8, 1916)

1915 Palmer, H., Trooper, Leicestershire Yeomanry

1914 Paton, R., Lance-Corporal, Royal Scots Fusiliers 1914 Paul, G. A., Second Lieut., Heavy M.G.C. (Tanks)

1914 Paul, T. B., Lieut., Indian Medical Service (died on service, August, 1915)

1914 Peabody, O. E., Private, Middlesex Regiment

1914 Perkins, A. E., Second Lieut., M.G.C.

1914 Perkins, W., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1916 Perkins, W. F., Bombardier, Warwickshire R.H.A.

1916 Phillips, E. G., Gunner, R.G.A.

1915 Pickbourne, L. H., Lieut., Leicestershire Regt. (wounded)

1915 Pickworth, C. H., Second Lieut., Leices. Regt. (wounded)

1914 Pike, E., Captain, Australian Expeditionary Force

1914 Pitts, F. B., Sec. Lieut. (wounded & prisoner. May 3, 1917)

1915 Pitts, H. C. M., Second Lieut., Worcester Regt.

1914 Porter, W. E., Captain, Leic. Regt. (wounded, June, 1917)

1914 Potter, I., Sergeant, Leicestershire Yeomanry

1914 Pratt, C., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1915 Price, R., Second Lieut., Sherwood Foresters

1915 Proudfoot, H. H., Second Lieut., R.A.M.C. (killed in action, September, 1916)

1914 Purnell, A. W. H., Second Lieut., R.G.A. Reynolds, H., Private, T.R. Battalion

1914 Richards, A. G., Private, Leicestershire Regiment Riley, A. R., Trooper, Derbyshire Yeomanry

1914 Roberts, F. W., Private, Middlesex Regiment

1915 Rowbotham A., Lance-Corporal, Leicestershire Regiment (killed in action, September 15th, 1916)

1916 Savage, W. A., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment (wounded, 1917)

1915 Scott, C. F. F., Private, R.A.M.C.

1915 Scurr, F., Lieut., R.N.R.

1914 Scurr, W. E., Second Lieut., R.E. (Signals)

1915 Seal, J. R., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regt.

1915 Sharpe, S. A., Second Lieut., R.F.A., attached R.F.C. Shepherd, A., Private, T.R. Battalion Simpson, W. A., Private, A.S.C.

1916 Slater, W. F., Lance-Corporal, Yorkshire Regiment

1914 Smalley, H., Private, Leicestershire Regiment (missing, July 1st, 1916; presumed killed in action)

1916 Smedley, J. H., Second Lieut., Leicestershire Regiment

1915 Smith, F. C., Staff-Sergeant, R.A.M.C

1916 Smith, C. V., Private, R.A.M.C. (X-Ray Operator) Spence, N. F., Second Lieut., Devonshire Regt. (wounded, August, 1917)

1914 Start, A. E., Captain, M.G.C.

1914 Street, A. E., Trooper, Leicestershire Yeomanry

1916 Sullens, W. P., Middlesex Regiment

1914 Sutton, J. H., Private, Royal Warwickshire Regiment

1914 Sutton, W., Private, Royal Warwickshire Regiment Taylor, W., Gunner, Notts. R.H.A.

1915 Thompson, R. M., Trooper, Life Guards

Thomson, A. R. K., Private, H.L.I.
 Tinsley, A. R., Private, Canadian Infantry (killed in action, April 10th; 1917)
 Toone, F. H., Gunner, R.G.A.

1915 Topliss, C. L., Driver, R.F.A.

1914 Topping, A. R., Private, R.E. Naval Division Tucker, C. G., Temp. Captain, R.F.C.

1914 Turner, J. W., Capt., M.C., Sherwood Foresters (wounded 1916)

1916 Turner, J. M., (rank and unit unknown)

1915 Turner, J. R. B., Lieut. and Adjutant, Royal Regiment of Artillery (Field)

1915 Turner, R. B., Second Lieut., Cheshire Regiment (killed in action, April 9th, 1916)

1916 Turner, T., Gunner, R.G.A.

1916 Wade, G. K. A., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1916 Walton, W. H., Private, Royal Fusiliers Watson, J. C., Private, T.R. Battalion

1914 Whitaker, A. W., Lance-Corporal, Leicestershire Regiment (killed in action, September 25th, 1916)

White, T., Private, T.R. Battalion

White, W. H., Lance-Corporal, Royal Fusiliers (died of wounds, November 26th, 1916)

1916 White, W. F., Corporal, R.E.

1914 Wigg, M., Trooper, Leicestershire Yeomanry, now Second Lieut. (not vet posted)

Wilkinson, F. McA., Private, R.E. (M.G.C.)

Wilson, J. H., Second Lieut., Sherwood Foresters (killed in action, April 7th, 1917. Wood, H., Sub-Lieut., R.N.V.R

1915 Woolley, J. L., Second Lieut., Leicestershire R.H.A. (wounded, 1916)

1916 Woulidge, L. B., Lance-Corpl., Royal Warwickshire Regt.

1914 Wright, H., Private (invalided out)

1915 Wright, W. G., Second Lieut., M.G.C.

1915 Yallup, A., Lance-Corporal, Lincolnshire Regiment

CONNECTED WITH THE SCHOOL, BUT NOT OLD BOYS.

1914 Brierley, W., Sergeant, Leicestershire Regiment

1915 Clarke, J., Private, Leicestershire Regiment

1914 Crockett, H. L., Sec. Lieut., R. Welsh Fusiliers (wounded July 20th, 1916)

1915 Imrie, H. W., Sergt., Leicestershire Regt. (gassed, 1917) McGrady, S. H., Gunner, R.G.A.

1914 Martin, R. E., Lieut.-Col., C.M.G., Leicestershire Regt. (wounded, 1915)

1914 Plumb, E. S., Second Lieut., West Riding Regt. (wounded July 1st, 1916)

1914 Watson, H. H., Interpreter, Australian Field Hospital (invalided)

1914 Wilson, G., Second Lieut., Norfolk Regiment (wounded, September, 1916)

General Notices.

HE Editor will be glad if those whose Subscriptions are now due will send them to the Editor of the "Loughburian," the Grammar School, Loughborough.

Receipts for subscriptions will be enclosed in the first copy of the Magazine sent after the subscription is paid.

Copies of past Loughburians may be had on application to the Editors, price 6d. each (post free).

The Annual Subscription is 1/6 post free.

Each Boy in the School is entitled to one copy of the Magazine free.

Copies of the current number can be obtained from Mr. Deakin, the "Echo" Office.

All contributions should be written on one side of the paper only. Correspondents may use a nom de plume but must always enclose their names and addresses.

All those who are leaving the School are requested to subscribe to the "Loughburian," and to hand in their names and addresses to the Editor before the end of the Term.